DISCUSSION
The citation in question charged a violation of 30 C.F.R.
§ 75.1704, which is the statutory standard requiring that escape-
ways be provided and maintained.  Respondent argues that since
the citation charged a violation of 30 C.F.R. § 75.1704 and not
of 30 C.F.R § 75.1704-2, it should be dismissed.  To accept this
argument is to exalt form over substance.  There was no doubt,
there is no doubt as to the nature of the violation charged.
And there is no doubt that the violation occurred.
2.	The violation referred to above was caused by Respondent's
unwarrantable failure to comply with the standard.
DISCUSSION
The meaning of the term unwarrantable failure has not, so
far as I am aware, been discussed in any Commission decision.
The Board of Mine Operations Appeals in Zeigler Coal Company,
7 IBMA 280 (1975) , analyzing the term in the light of the legis-
lative history, stated that a violation is caused by unwarrant-
able failure if the operator "has failed to abate the conditions
or practices constituting such violation, conditions or practices
the operator knew or should have known existed or which it failed
to abate because of a lack of due diligence, or because of
indifference or lack of reasonable Care."  This definition was
specifically approved by the Senate Committee which reported out
S. 717 which became in large measure the Federal Mine Safety and
Health Act of 1977,  "The Committee approved the recent decision
of the Board of Mine Operations Appeals in Zeigler Goal Co. which
liberalized the interpretation of the term ' unwarrantable
failure."1  S. Rep. 95-181, 95th Cong./ 1st Sess., at 32 (1977),
reprinted in. Senate Subcommittee on Labor, Committee on Human
Resources, 95th Cong., 2nd Sess., Legislative History of the
Federal Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, at 620 (1978) .  The
term unwarrantable failure is thus equated with negligence, rather
than recklessness, and I conclude that Respondent was negligent in
failing to see that the required examination was performed.
3.	The violation referred to above was of such nature as
could significantly and substantially contribute to the cause
and effect of a mine safety or health hazard.
DISCUSSION
The issue is whether failure to examine an escapeway in
accordance with the mandatory safety standards is likely to
result in serious injuries.  It is imperative that escapeways
be maintained in underground coal mines in a manner that they
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